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VIA EMAIL ONLY 
Norris J. Bishton 
Jeffrey S. Gubernick 
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6701 Center Drive West, Suite 925 
Los Angeles, CA 90045 
 

Re: Mark and Carol Forbush v. Hamilton Cove Homeowners Association 
 Design Proposal Presentation 
 

Dear Mr. Gubernick: 
 

Mr. and Mrs. Forbush are ready to proceed with presentation of their third remodeling proposal of Units 
81 and 82.  Based on the HOA’s handling of their previous two submissions and on your suggestion that 
engineers, architects, and general contractors be consulted on this proposal (Bishton-Gubernick letter 
dated March 13, 2020, page 3), we propose an onsite presentation of the proposal with all relevant parties 
present. As a bonded and licensed general contractor of 26 years in good standing, Mr. Forbush is qualified 
to present their proposal to the group. 
 

In a nutshell, the remodeling proposal includes approximately three major components:  
 

1. The removal of the interior party wall between Units 81 and 82 on the upper level to provide free 
access between the two spaces.  This wall appears to be a party wall and not a load-bearing wall.  The 
interior party wall runs parallel to the ceiling joists which strongly infers it is not load-bearing.  If it 
were a load-bearing wall it would run perpendicular to the ceiling joists.  Attached are images of 
adjoining Unit 83 during its recent repair of extensive water damage (Attachment 1).  Based on the 
images, we know conclusively that the ceiling joists run parallel to the interior party wall that will be 
removed between Forbush’s two Units and that this wall is unlikely to be a  load-bearing wall. 

 

 In addition to the removal of this party wall, the balcony partition will also be opened up to allow free 
movement between the Units.  Any changes will be consistent with the beauty and aesthetics of 
Hamilton Cove. 

 

2. The construction of a connecting hallway on the lower level for access between the two Units.  This 
connecting hallway, and other design features, may present a solution to the disputed HOA pipe 
encroachment in the upper level bathrooms.  One of the legal authorities for this connecting hallway, 
in relation to the encroaching pipes, is Civ. Code §4600(b)(3)(B). 

 

3. The construction of a lift from street level to both levels of Unit 82.  This lift will address the lack of 
disability access to Forbush’s Units.  One of the legal authorities for this lift is Civ. Code 
§4600(b)(3)(F).  In keeping with the beauty and aesthetics of Hamilton Cove, the lift will be well 
blended into its surroundings. 

 

There is a vast permissiveness throughout Hamilton Cove concerning private exclusive use of Common 
Areas.  In addition to closed-off Common Area balconies, private televisions and furniture lounge areas of  
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all sorts occupying Common Area spaces, we became particularly interested in the Common Area closets 
located in the outside entry hallway of Units 80 and 83 Playa Azul.  (Units 80 and 83 adjoin the Forbush 
property.)  These outside hallway closets are Common Areas because they are not included in the 
Condominium Plan or any secondary recorded document description of the boundary space for these Units 
(Attachment 2).  They are being used for private purposes because they contain privately owned washer 
and dryer appliances and other personal belongings of Units 80 and 83.  Use is exclusive because the closet 
doors are locked with the key in the possession of the owners of these Units.  Also, the water and electrical 
utilities for these rooms are metered exclusively to the homeowner.  Unless the HOA’s governing 
documents specify a different percentage, giving an owner exclusive use of any portion of the Common 
Areas requires the approval of 67% of the membership (Civ. Code §4600(a)).  If this has occurred, please 
provide the documentation of such vote including whether the HOA received any monetary consideration 
for the grant and whether the HOA or the transferee is responsible for providing any insurance coverage 
for exclusive use of the common area (Civ. Code §4600(c)).   
 

Alternatively, perhaps the private exclusive use is covered by one of the exceptions in Civ. Code §4600(b). 
 

It is understandable how the homeowners of Units 80 and 83 might believe these spaces are owned by 
them.  The real estate multiple listings for the most recent sale of these Units describe these rooms as 
included with the Unit (Attachment 3).  Common Areas cannot be transferred in the sale of any Unit unless 
previously approved pursuant to Civ. Code §4600(a) or covered by an exception under §4600(b).  It seems 
that Civ Code §4600(b)(3)(B) may have granted exclusive private use of these Common Area closets to 
Units 80 and 83 to address a construction defect that left these two Units with no laundry facility inside 
their Units.  Otherwise, these Units would be required to launder in Avalon since Hamilton Cove provides 
no onsite laundry facility. 
 

It is noted that the HOA has not acknowledged the Forbush’s previously raised disability access concerns 
which is a priority for them to access their Unit.  Nonetheless, they are willing to engage in good faith with 
the HOA on this new proposal to remodel their two Units to allow greater access, including disability 
access, and possibly resolve the encroachment dispute of the HOA pipes in their upper level bathrooms. 
 

We propose an onsite presentation of Forbush’s design proposal with qualified decisionmakers from both 
parties.   This will allow questions, concerns and approvals to move forward.  Therefore, in addition to Mr. 
and Mrs. Forbush and their attorney, we suggest the following be invited to attend the onsite meeting on 
these proposed dates: 
 

 Sandy Love (Chief Operations Officer, Forbush Asset Management) 
 Pete Edwards, Fine Line Construction 
 

 Proposed Date Range:   May 15 - June 15 
 

Please send us your list of qualified decisionmakers and available dates for your attendees by May 8, 2020 
so we can proceed with the scheduling process. 
 

Best regards, 
 

/s/ 
 

Alice E. Waters 


















